



**Section 2:** Section 6 of Chapter 1 of Title 11, pertaining to Definitions is amended as follows:

**11-1-6: DEFINITIONS:**

For the purpose of this title, the following words and phrases shall have meanings respectively ascribed to them in this section:

**ADJACENT:** Separated from the subject lot(s) or parcel(s) by one (1) of the following: lot line, property boundary, right-of-way, private street, alley or easement.

**ADMINISTRATIVE PLATS:** A FORM OF A MINOR SUBDIVISION TO COMBINE TWO LOTS INTO ONE LOT OR SEPARATE 1 LOT INTO TWO PLATTED LOTS AND TO ESTABLISH BOUNDARIES.

**ALLEY:** A strip of land dedicated to public use, located at the side or rear of lots and providing a secondary means of vehicular access to the property.

**BICYCLE WAY:** A public pathway or lane designed to be used exclusively by bicycle traffic and clearly separated from roadways and pedestrian ways.

**BLOCK:** A parcel of land within a subdivision, generally bounded by public or private rights-of-way (other than alleys) or the exterior boundary or boundaries of a subdivision.

**BLOCK FACE:** One (1) side of a street between two (2) consecutive features intersecting that street. The features can be other streets, alleys, or other rights-of-way.

**COMMISSION:** The Littleton City Planning Commission.

**CONDOMINIUM:** AN ESTATE IN REAL PROPERTY CONSISTING OF AN UNDIVIDED INTEREST IN COMMON IN A PORTION OF A PARCEL OF REAL PROPERTY, TOGETHER WITH A SEPARATE INTEREST IN THE SPACE IN A RESIDENTIAL, INDUSTRIAL OR COMMERCIAL BUILDING ON SUCH REAL PROPERTY SUCH AS AN APARTMENT, OFFICE OR RETAIL SPACE.

**CORRECTION PLAT:** A CORRECTION PLAT OR AMENDING PLAT RECORDS MINOR CORRECTIONS TO AN EXISTING PLAT, SUCH AS CORRECTING A SURVEYING MISTAKE OR A SCRIVENER'S ERROR.

**COUNCIL:** The Littleton City Council.

**CUL-DE-SAC:** A short street having one (1) end open to traffic and being terminated at the other end by a vehicular turnaround.

**DEAD END STREET:** A street having only one (1) outlet for vehicular traffic which does not meet the standards or definition of cul-de-sac.

**EASEMENT:** A right in the public of any person, firm or corporation to use the land of another for a special purpose not inconsistent with the general property rights retained by the owner.

1  
2 FLOODPLAIN: The relatively flat or lowland area adjoining a river, stream, watercourse, lake  
3 or other body of surface water which has been or may be covered temporarily by floodwater. For  
4 administrative purposes, the floodplain may be defined as the area that would be inundated by  
5 the base flood as delineated by the Federal Insurance and Hazard Mitigation Agency, or other  
6 recognized source.

7  
8 IMPROVEMENTS: Street grading, paving and curbing; fire hydrants; public and private  
9 utilities; storm sewers and drains; pedestrian and bicycle ways; crosswalks; street shade trees; if  
10 applicable, common open space; and such other improvements as may be designated by the City.

11  
12 LEGAL DESCRIPTION: A written metes and bounds description of the boundary of a parcel of  
13 real property by a professional land surveyor, for the purpose of perpetuating location and title.  
14 The description must recite all ties and monuments, recorded or physical, which will determine  
15 the correct position of the boundary, all references to adjoining lands by name and record, and a  
16 full dimensional recital of the boundary courses in succession which shall be mathematically  
17 correct. The description must be accompanied by an exhibit or map showing all pertinent  
18 information as described in the narrative.

19  
20 LOT: The unit into which land is divided on a subdivision plat with the intention of separate  
21 ownership or use.

22  
23 LOT OF RECORD: A lot which is part of a recorded subdivision, which has been filed with the  
24 appropriate County Clerk and Recorder's Office. For purposes of this title, the term "legally  
25 described lot" shall be deemed synonymous with the term "lot of record".

26  
27 MAJOR SUBDIVISION: All those subdivisions which do not meet the requirements of a "minor  
28 subdivision" as herein defined.

29  
30 MINOR SUBDIVISION: The subdivision of land into ten (10) or fewer lots, all of which ~~about an~~  
31 MUST HAVE LEGAL ACCESS TO AN existing dedicated and accepted City street; and where  
32 no variance from the requirements of these regulations OR the zoning title or other applicable  
33 City ordinances and resolutions is requested by the applicant.

34  
35 PARCEL: A tract or plot of land of any size that may or may not be subdivided.

36  
37 PEDESTRIAN WAY: All public or private pathway or sidewalk designed to be used exclusively  
38 by pedestrian traffic.

39  
40 PLAT: A document showing the surveyed dimensions and legal description of a parcel of land;  
41 the re-assemblage of parcels; or the subdivision or resubdivision of land into lots, blocks, tracts,  
42 easements and rights-of-way.

43  
44 FINAL PLAT: A map and supporting materials prepared in accordance with these regulations as  
45 an instrument for recording real estate interests with the County Clerk and Recorder.

46  
47 PRELIMINARY PLAT: The map(s) and specified supporting materials of a proposed  
48 subdivision prepared in accordance with these regulations to permit evaluation of the proposal  
prior to the ~~detailed engineering, design and~~ preparation of the final plat. FOR A MINOR

1 SUBDIVISION, THE APPROVAL OF A PRELIMINARY PLAT BY THE COMMUNITY  
2 DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR SHALL RESULT IN THE PRELIMINARY PLAT BEING  
3 CONSIDERED AS A FINAL PLAT.

4 ~~PUBLIC HEARING: A meeting of the City Council, or other duly constituted board or~~  
5 ~~commission, for the purpose of hearing comments, testimony, recommendations and other~~  
6 ~~responses from the applicant, City staff, and other interested parties and the general public~~  
7 ~~regarding the applicant's appeal and after the public hearing, of taking action on the appeal.~~  
8 ~~Notice of the time and place of such hearing shall be published at least six (6) days prior to the~~  
9 ~~hearing.~~

10  
11 PUBLIC MEETING: A regularly scheduled meeting or duly advertised special meeting of the  
12 City Council, or other duly constituted board or commission, held for the purpose of conducting  
13 business.

14  
15 PUBLIC WORKS: The Department of Public ~~Services~~-WORKS, formerly known as the  
16 Department of Public ~~Works~~ SERVICES.

17  
18 REPLAT: A resubdivision of a portion of an approved and recorded final plat that will change  
19 lot configuration or create new lots and tracts; ~~an amended plat~~. A CORRECTION PLAT IS  
20 NOT A REPLAT.

21  
22 RESUBDIVISION: Any modification of land previously subdivided or platted, OTHER THAN  
23 A CORRECTION PLAT.

24  
25 ROADWAY: That portion of a street designated for vehicular traffic; the portion between curbs  
26 or edges of pavement.

27  
28 STREET: A dedicated public right-of-way which provides vehicular and pedestrian access to  
29 adjacent properties. This definition shall include the terms road, lane, place, avenue, drive and  
30 other similar designations.

31 (A) Local (Single-Family Residential Areas): A street which provides direct access to  
32 adjacent property, designed in a manner to prevent through traffic movements, and does  
33 not intersect major arterial streets.

34  
35 (B) Local (Multi-Family Residential, Business And Industrial Areas): A street which  
36 provides direct access to adjacent property, designed in a manner to discourage through  
37 traffic movements, and should not intersect major arterial streets.

38  
39 (C) Collector (2 Moving Lanes): A street which collects and distributes traffic between  
40 local streets and major arterial streets.

41  
42 (D) Arterial (4 Or 6 Moving Lanes): A street which permits rapid and relatively  
43 unimpeded movements, connecting communities, as well as major land use elements,  
44 with one another.

45  
46 (E) Limited Access Facility: A highway which provides rapid and unimpeded traffic

1 movement between urban centers. Access is partially or completely controlled with  
2 primary grade separated interchanges connecting only to major arterial streets permitted.

3 SUBDIVIDER: Any person, group, corporation or other entity who, as owner or purchaser, or  
4 agent of such owner or purchaser, ~~divides~~ CREATES or proposes to ~~divide~~ CREATE land into  
5 lots or other tracts for the purposes of resale or development. For purposes of this title, the term  
6 "applicant" shall be deemed synonymous with the term "subdivider".  
7

8 SUBDIVISION: The ~~division~~ DESIGNATION of a parcel of land into ~~two~~ (2) ONE (1) or more  
9 lots and other tracts for the purpose of resale and/or development. This term includes re-  
10 subdivision and when appropriate to the context, shall relate to the process of subdividing or to  
11 the land being subdivided.

12 **Section 3:** Chapter 1 of Title 11 of the City Code is hereby amended by the  
13 addition of a new Section 7 as follows:

14 **11-1-7: PROHIBITION AGAINST ISSUANCE OF BUILDING PERMITS FOR**  
15 **UNPLATTED PROPERTY:**

16 NO BUILDING PERMITS SHALL BE ISSUED FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OR  
17 ALTERATION OF ANY STRUCTURE ON ANY PROPERTY UNLESS A PLAT OF SUCH  
18 PROPERTY HAS BEEN PREPARED, APPROVED AND RECORDED IN ACCORDANCE  
19 WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF TITLE 11 OF THIS CODE, WITH THE FOLLOWING  
20 EXCEPTIONS:

21 (A) FENCES;

22 (B) REPAIRS OR ADDITIONS WHICH CONFORM TO THE PROVISIONS OF TITLE  
23 10 OF THIS CODE, REGARDING SETBACKS, UNOBSTRUCTED OPEN SPACE,  
24 PARKING REQUIREMENTS AND MAXIMUM FLOOR AREA LIMITATIONS;

25 (C) SIGNS; AND

26 (D) ACCESSORY STRUCTURES ON PROPERTY HAVING EXISTING PRIMARY  
27 STRUCTURES OR USES.

28 (E) ANY PARCEL, TRACT OF LAND, OR PLOT CREATED AND/OR CONVEYED AS A  
29 SINGLE LOT ON OR BEFORE JUNE 12, 1992.

30 **Section 4:** Section 1 and 2 of Chapter 4 of Title 11 are hereby amended as  
31 follows:

32 **11-4-1: MINOR SUBDIVISIONS AND ADMINISTRATIVE PLATS:**  
33

34 (A) Any subdivision of land which complies with all of the following requirements as herein  
35 defined, TOGETHER WITH THE OPERATING STANDARDS PROMULGATED BY THE  
36 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENTS shall be  
37 processed within the provisions of this chapter.

38 1. The proposed plat shall contain FROM ONE TO ~~more than two but no more~~ ten (10)  
39 ~~or fewer~~ lots;

2. ~~All lots must~~ THE SUBDIVISION SHALL abut a dedicated and accepted city street.  
ALL LOTS IN THE SUBDIVISION MUST HAVE LEGAL ACCESS TO A  
DEDICATED AND ACCEPTED CITY STREET;

3. The proposed plat shall meet the minimum requirements of the subdivision  
regulations and zoning regulations.

(B) Any proposed subdivision which does not comply with all of the requirements as defined  
hereinabove, shall be considered a MAJOR subdivision and must be processed in compliance  
with chapter 3 of this title.

(C) The following are administrative plats:

1. A request to move, reconfigure, or revise an existing platted lot line. ~~on an~~  
~~administrative plat;~~

2. A request to adjust a platted subdivision boundary between not more than two (2)  
existing platted lots within two (2) separate filings or subdivisions;

3. A request to adjust a platted subdivision boundary to include an adjacent unplatted  
parcel of land;

4. A request to vacate an existing platted easement or building envelope on an existing  
platted lot, provided that the building envelope or easement was dedicated and designated  
through a plat and only affects not more than two lots;

5. A request to merge platted lots;

6. A REQUEST TO PLAT UNPLATTED PROPERTY.

#### **11-4-2: ~~PRELIMINARY AND FINAL~~ PLATTING PROCEDURES:**

(A) Preparation: The subdivider shall cause the preparation of a Preliminary plat of the proposed  
subdivision by a registered land surveyor. The plat shall comply with the provisions of these  
regulations, ~~and~~ other ordinances of the city, OPERATING STANDARDS OF THE  
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENTS and state law.

(B) OPERATING STANDARDS: THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT  
SHALL PROMULGATE OPERATING STANDARDS GOVERNING DEADLINES,  
NUMBER OF COPIES AND SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS FOR PLATS.

~~(BC)~~ Submission: The applicant shall submit the preliminary plat application TO THE  
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT ~~pursuant to the requirements and process~~  
~~described in section 11-2-2 of this title~~. The application deadlines, required number of copies,  
AND SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS shall be in accordance with the operating standards as  
established by the department of community development.

(CD) Action On The ~~Preliminary Final~~ Plat:

1. MINOR SUBDIVISION City Staff Review And Recommendation  
DETERMINATION: City staff shall review the ~~proposed preliminary plat and final plat~~  
for compliance with the provisions of this title, other applicable regulations,

1 INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO THE OPERATING STANDARDS OF THE  
2 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENTS, the  
3 comprehensive plan, existing and proposed development, and comments from affected  
4 agencies and WHICH shall ~~frame~~ FORM THE BASIS FOR the city staff's formal  
5 ~~recommendation-~~ DETERMINATION on the ~~proposed final~~ plat. UPON A  
6 DETERMINATION BY THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR AND  
7 THE PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR THAT ALL APPLICABLE CODE AND  
8 REGULATION PROVISIONS ARE MET THEN THE PLAT SHALL BE APPROVED.  
9 IF THE PRELIMINARY PLAT IS APPROVED, THE PLAT SHALL BE ~~deemed~~  
10 CONSIDERED TO BE THE FINAL PLAT. ~~and the applicant shall submit all recordable~~  
11 ~~documents within thirty calendar days of approval of the plat.~~

12 2. Appeal Of Staff's ~~Recommendation~~ DECISION: ~~If the staff approves-~~ ONCE THE  
13 STAFF APPROVES OR DENIES the plat FOR A MINOR SUBDIVISION, FROM THE  
14 SUBMITTED PRELIMINARY PLAT, the applicant may appeal ~~to the city council~~ the  
15 staff's decision TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION. Such appeal must be made in  
16 writing to the department of community development within ten (10) calendar days of  
17 the staff's decision. The ~~council~~ PLANNING COMMISSION shall receive the appeal  
18 request and shall schedule a ~~public hearing~~ MEETING to review the decision, approve  
19 the plat as submitted, or concur with the decision of city staff. The department of  
20 community development shall notify the applicant of the time and place of said ~~hearing~~  
21 MEETING within two (2) calendar days after the ~~hearing~~ MEETING is scheduled. THE  
22 APPEAL OF THE APPROVED PLAT IS NOT A QUASI JUDICIAL DECISION,  
23 RATHER IT IS AN ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW OF AN AGENCY  
24 DETERMINATION WHICH SHALL BE UPHELD UNLESS SUCH AGENCY  
25 DETERMINATION IS ARBITRARY, UNREASONABLE, OR CAPRICIOUS.

26 3. City Council Action: IF THE MINOR SUBDIVISION CONTAINS ONE OR MORE  
27 DEDICATIONS OF REAL PROPERTY TO THE CITY, THE FINAL PLAT MUST ME  
28 APPROVED BY CITY COUNCIL. If the director of community development and the  
29 director of public works certify that the final plat is in compliance with the accepted  
30 engineering principles, and the ordinances of the city, and the plat is approved as to form  
31 by the city attorney, said plat shall be submitted to city council for final approval. THE  
32 APPROVAL OF THE FINAL PLAT BY THE CITY COUNCIL IS NOT A QUASI  
33 JUDICIAL DECISION, RATHER IT IS AN ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW OF AN  
34 AGENCY DETERMINATION WHICH SHALL BE UPHELD UNLESS SUCH  
35 AGENCY DETERMINATION IS ARBITRARY, UNREASONABLE, OR  
36 CAPRICIOUS.

37 4. The decision of the community development director on an administrative PLAT OR  
38 REPLAT IS FINAL, UNLESS APPEALED IN ACCORDANCE WITH SUBSECTION  
39 2 or subject to council action under subsection 3.

40 5. EXPIRATION: THE APPROVAL OF A ~~preliminary~~ MINOR SUBDIVISION PLAT  
41 BY THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR SHALL BE VALID FOR ONE  
42 (1) YEAR, AUTHORIZING THE SUBDIVIDER TO PREPARE AND SUBMIT A

1 FINAL PLAT FOR SIGNATURE. AFTER THE EXPIRATION, A NEW MINOR  
2 SUBDIVISION SHALL BE SUBMITTED FOR REVIEW.

3 **Section 5:** Chapter 4 of Title 11 of the City Code is hereby amended by the  
4 addition of a new Section 3 as follows:

5 **11-4-3: CORRECTION PLATS; PURPOSE; APPLICATION AND PROCEDURES.**

6 (A) THE PURPOSE OF THIS SECTION IS TO SET FORTH PROCEDURES AND  
7 REQUIREMENTS FOR CORRECTION PLATS.

8 (B) CORRECTION PLATS SHALL BE USED ONLY FOR THE PURPOSE OF  
9 CORRECTING ONE (1) OR MORE TECHNICAL ERRORS IN AN APPROVED PLAT. THE  
10 CORRECTION PLAT SHALL BE CONSISTENT WITH THE APPROVED FINAL PLAT  
11 EXCEPT FOR THOSE TECHNICAL ERRORS WHICH ARE TO BE CORRECTED.  
12 TECHNICAL ERRORS MAY NOT RESULT IN AN INCREASE IN THE NUMBER OF  
13 LOTS CONTAINED ON THE APPROVED FINAL PLAT OR THE DEDICATION OR  
14 ELIMINATION OF DEDICATION OF REAL PROPERTY TO THE CITY.

15 (C) THE REVIEW OF A CORRECTION PLAT SHALL BE LIMITED TO THOSE  
16 TECHNICAL ERRORS TO BE CORRECTED AND SHALL FOLLOW THE PROCESS IN  
17 THIS CHAPTER FOR MINOR PLAT REVIEW. UPON REVIEW OF A CORRECTION  
18 PLAT, THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR MAY APPROVE THE PLAT  
19 AND SHALL RECORD A COPY OF THE SIGNED CORRECTION PLAT IN THE COUNTY  
20 CLERK AND RECORDER'S OFFICE. THERE SHALL BE NO APPEAL OF THE  
21 DECISION OF THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR IN APPROVING A  
22 CORRECTION PLAT.

23 (D) TECHNICAL ERRORS ARE MATTERS SUCH AS AN IMPROPERLY LOCATED LOT  
24 LINE, IMPROPER NUMBERING OF NOTES, ERRORS IN THE SIGNATURE BLOCK,  
25 SPELLING AND TYPOGRAPHICAL ERRORS, AND SIMILAR TYPES OF ERRORS.

26  
27 **Section 6:** Chapter 9 of Title 11 is hereby deleted as follows:

28  
29 **~~11-9-1: PURPOSE AND APPLICABILITY:~~**

30 ~~(A) In addition to section 11-1-2 of this title, the purpose of this chapter is to establish an~~  
31 ~~administrative review process for minor changes to subdivision plats and unplatted parcels that~~  
32 ~~result in the creation of no more than two (2) platted lots.~~

33 **~~11-9-2: APPLICABILITY:~~**

34 ~~(A-B) Approval Of Requests: The following requests may be approved in an administrative plat,~~  
35 ~~provided the resulting plat does not create more than two (2) platted lots and does not merge~~  
36 ~~more than two (2) parcels (platted or unplatted) into a single platted lot. subsections (B) 2; 3; 4;~~  
37 ~~5; and 7 are deemed to be replats of an existing administrative plat:~~

38 ~~1. A request to plat unplatted property;~~



- ~~2. A request to move, reconfigure, or revise an existing platted lot line on an administrative plat;~~
- ~~3. A request to adjust a platted subdivision boundary between not more than two (2) existing platted lots within two (2) separate filings or subdivisions;~~
- ~~4. A request to adjust a platted subdivision boundary to include an adjacent unplatted parcel of land;~~
- ~~5. A request to vacate an existing platted easement or building envelope on an existing platted lot, provided that the building envelope or easement was dedicated and designated through a plat and only affects the subject lot;~~
- ~~6. A request to merge platted lots; or~~
- ~~7. A request to correct misspellings or other minor technical corrections on recorded plats.~~

~~(B-C) Restrictions:~~

- ~~1. Requests requiring the dedication of public right of way may not be processed as administrative plats.~~
- ~~2-1. Requests requiring the dedication of easements may not be processed as administrative plats. Easements that have been dedicated by separate instruments prior to recordation of the administrative plat may be noted on an administrative plat.~~
- ~~2-2. No lots previously created through an administrative platting process may be additionally divided or merged through an administrative plat or replat process that would result in the creation of three or more lots from the original parcel. However, lot line adjustments between two (2) existing lots may be processed as an administrative plat or replat in conformance with subsection (A-B)2 of this section.~~

~~(C-D) Processing Of Incomplete Requests: Any request that does not meet the requirements for processing as an administrative plat may be processed as an application for a major or minor subdivision, as applicable. A minor subdivision does not require the submittal of a new application, the community development department may simply reclassify an existing application as a minor subdivision~~

**11-9-3: PROCEDURE:**

~~(A) Pre-Submittal Meeting: Prior to the submittal of an administrative plat application, the applicant shall meet with staff for a concept meeting to discuss the request, the procedures, and the submittal requirements.~~

~~(B) Application Submittal: The applicant shall submit the administrative plat application pursuant to the requirements and process described in chapters 1, 5, and 6 of this title, as applicable to the requested plat, and the operating standards as established by the Department of Community Development.~~

~~(B) The applicant shall submit the administrative plat application to the Community Development Department. The application deadlines, required number of copies and submission requirements shall be in accordance with the operating standards as established by the Department of Community Development.~~

1 **11-9-4: CRITERIA FOR DECISION:**

2 ~~An administrative plat shall be approved only if the Director determines that all of the following~~  
3 ~~criteria have been met:~~

4 ~~(A) Each parcel created by the administrative plat or replat complies with the minimum~~  
5 ~~requirements of the governing zone district, including but not limited to, the maximum density~~  
6 ~~and minimum open space requirements, the subdivision regulations and other applicable City~~  
7 ~~ordinances and resolutions. Multiple zone districts may not be contained within one~~  
8 ~~administrative plat or replat.~~

9 ~~(B) Each parcel created by the administrative plat or replat is consistent with existing character~~  
10 ~~of the block face on which the property is located. To be eligible for an administrative plat or~~  
11 ~~replat, the revised lot must be within 75 percent—150 percent of the average lot size, average~~  
12 ~~depth, and average width, of the existing lots on the same block face.~~

13 ~~(C) The applicant shall provide evidence that public water and public sewer facilities are~~  
14 ~~available to serve each lot. This shall be in the form of "will serve" letters from the appropriate~~  
15 ~~service providers.~~

16 ~~(D) All resulting lots must abut a dedicated and accepted City street.~~

17 ~~(E) If the request is to divide unsubdivided land in an existing planned development zoned~~  
18 ~~district, each lot or parcel resulting from the administrative plat shall be one acre or smaller in~~  
19 ~~size.~~

20 **11-9-5: APPEALS:**

21 ~~An applicant may appeal the action of the Director of Community Development on the~~  
22 ~~administrative plat or replat to the City Council. Such appeal must be made in writing, specifying~~  
23 ~~the grounds the appeal is being made, within thirty (30) days of the administrative action. The~~  
24 ~~Council shall receive the appeal request and schedule a public hearing to review the decision of~~  
25 ~~the administrative action, at which time the applicant shall have the opportunity to present~~  
26 ~~information of its choosing to the City Council. The Council may approve the plat as submitted,~~  
27 ~~affirm the decision of the Director of Community Development, or require a major or minor~~  
28 ~~subdivision to be processed in conformance with this Code.~~

29 ~~(A) Appeal of staff's recommendation: if the staff approves the plat with modifications from the~~  
30 ~~draft administrative plat, the applicant may appeal to the city council the staff's decision. Such~~  
31 ~~appeal must be made in writing to the department of community development within ten (10)~~  
32 ~~calendar days of the staff's decision. The council shall receive the appeal request and shall~~  
33 ~~schedule a meeting to review the decision, approve the plat as submitted, or concur with the~~  
34 ~~decision of city staff. The department of community development shall notify the applicant of~~  
35 ~~the time and place of said meeting within two (2) calendar days after the matter is scheduled. The~~  
36 ~~appeal of the draft administrative is not a quasi-judicial decision, rather it is an administrative~~  
37 ~~review of an agency determination which shall be upheld unless such agency determination is~~  
38 ~~arbitrary, unreasonable or capricious.~~

39  
40 ~~(B) The decision of the community development director on an administrative replat is final~~  
41 ~~unless the actual square footage sizes of one or both lots on the approved administrative plat are~~

1 ~~decreased in size. Appeals in such matters shall be processed in the manner provided in~~  
2 ~~subsection (A)~~  
3

4 **Section 7:** Title 11 of the City Code is hereby amended by the addition of a new  
5 Chapter 10 regarding Special Provisions for Condominium Subdivisions:  
6

7 **11-10-1. SUBDIVISION CLASSIFICATION.** CONDOMINIUM APPLICATIONS SHALL  
8 BE CLASSIFIED AS A MAJOR OR MINOR SUBDIVISION WITH REGARDS TO THE  
9 APPLICATION PROCESS AND SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS, AS SET FORTH IN  
10 CHAPTERS 3 AND 4 OF THIS TITLE. CONDOMINIUM APPLICATIONS SHALL BE  
11 PREPARED AND SUBMITTED IN COMPLIANCE WITH TITLE 38, ARTICLE 33 OF THE  
12 COLORADO REVISED STATUTES, CONDOMINIUM OWNERSHIP ACT. IN ADDITION  
13 TO THE REQUIREMENTS FOR A MINOR OR MAJOR SUBDIVISION PLAT, THE  
14 FOLLOWING ADDITIONAL ELEMENTS PERTAIN SPECIFICALLY TO CONDOMINIUM  
15 SUBDIVISIONS: (1) SITE PLAN; (2) FLOOR PLANS; (3) COMMON FACILITIES; AND (4)  
16 CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND BY-LAWS.  
17

18 **11-10-2. SITE PLAN.** A CONDOMINIUM SITE PLAN SHALL BE PREPARED BY A  
19 COLORADO REGISTERED LAND SURVEYOR. THE CONTENTS OF THE SITE PLAN  
20 SHALL INCLUDE THE APPLICABLE REQUIREMENTS OF THE MINOR OR MAJOR  
21 SUBDIVISION SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS, AS WELL AS SHOWING GENERAL  
22 COMMON ELEMENTS; LIMITED COMMON ELEMENTS AND INDIVIDUAL AIR SPACE  
23 UNITS. THE BEARINGS AND DIMENSIONS FOR ALL CONDOMINIUM LAND UNITS  
24 SHALL BE PROVIDED ON THE CONDOMINIUM SITE PLAN, ALONG WITH  
25 NECESSARY TIES TO PROPERTY CORNERS.  
26

27 **11-10-3. BUILDING FLOOR PLANS.** FLOOR PLANS OF CONDOMINIUM BUILDING  
28 UNITS SHALL BE PROVIDED AT A SCALE OF 1"= 5', 1"= 10' OR 1"= 20' SHOWING  
29 THE LOCATION AND HORIZONTAL AND VERTICAL DIMENSIONS OF EACH UNIT  
30 AND COMMON AREA.

31 (A) THE FLOOR PLANS SHALL BE PREPARED, SIGNED, AND STAMPED BY A  
32 COLORADO LICENSED LAND SURVEYOR, A COLORADO LICENSED ARCHITECT,  
33 OR A COLORADO LICENSED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER IN A FORMAT SUITABLE  
34 FOR FILING IN THE COUNTY CLERK AND RECORDER'S OFFICE.

35 (B) THE FLOOR PLANS SHALL INCLUDE A STANDARD APPROVAL BLOCK FOR  
36 THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR TO SIGN INDICATING THEIR  
37 APPROVAL OF THE BUILDING LAYOUT.

38 (C) THE EXTERIOR WALLS OF EACH UNIT SHALL BE SHOWN AND PROVISIONS  
39 FOR INGRESS TO AND EGRESS FROM EACH UNIT TO COMMON AREAS SHALL BE  
40 SHOWN.

**11-10-4. COMMON FACILITIES.** ALL COMMON AND LIMITED COMMON AREAS AND THEIR DIMENSIONS SHALL BE SHOWN ON THE FINAL PLAT AND BUILDING FLOOR PLANS. THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION SHALL BE INCLUDED ON THE FINAL PLAT AND BUILDING PLANS:

(A) THE LOCATION OF ALL COMMON FACILITIES ON THE SITE SHALL BE SHOWN ON THE FINAL PLAT, INCLUDING ALL PARKING, DRIVEWAYS, LANDSCAPED AREAS, WALKWAYS, SIGNS, SOLID WASTE FACILITIES, FIRE HYDRANTS, MAIL BOXES, LIGHT POLES, ABOVE GROUND UTILITIES, FENCES, AND OTHER PERTINENT COMMON FACILITIES;

(B) THE LOCATION, DIMENSION, AND PURPOSE OF EACH COMMON AREA, AND LIMITED COMMON AREA SHALL BE SHOWN;

(C) ACCEPTABLE MEANS FOR WATER METERING, WATER SERVICE, AND SEWER SERVICE INCLUDING EXISTING AND PROPOSED WATER AND SEWER SERVICE CONNECTIONS; AND

(D) THE ASSIGNMENT OF PARKING TO SPECIFIC UNITS AND THAT PORTION OF PARKING DESIGNATED AS COMMON TO ALL UNITS.

**11-10-5. ACCEPTABLE WATER METERING AND WATER SERVICE.**

THE CONVERSION OF EXISTING BUILDINGS TO CONDOMINIUM CREATES UNIQUE ARRANGEMENTS FOR UTILITY SERVICE.

(A) THE PROPOSED CONDOMINIUM PLAT SHALL CONTAIN ONE OR MORE SPECIFIC SHEETS AND DEMONSTRATE ONE OR MORE OF THE FOLLOWING PROVISIONS FOR WATER METERING AND WATER SERVICE TO THE SATISFACTION OF THE DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS:

1. INSTALLATION OF SEPARATE WATER SERVICES AND WATER METERS FOR EACH CONDOMINIUM UNIT; OR

2. INSTALLATION OF SEPARATE WATER SERVICE VALVES AT THE STREET LINE AND INDIVIDUAL METERS IN THE CONDOMINIUM UNITS; OR

3. USE OF A SINGLE METER FOR EACH BUILDING WITH THE CONDOMINIUM ASSOCIATION ASSUMING RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE WATER BILLING; OR

4. INSTALLATION OF MULTIPLE WATER METERS ON A SINGLE WATER SERVICE WHERE THE SERVICE ENTERS THE BUILDING. THE WATER METERS AND WATER SERVICE VALVES MUST BE LOCATED IN AN ACCESSIBLE LOCATION, WHERE WATER UTILITY SERVICE PERSONNEL CAN ENTER WITHOUT PASSING THROUGH INDIVIDUAL CONDOMINIUM UNITS.

(B) IF THE EXISTING WATER AND SEWER SERVICES ARE SUBSTANDARD, THE DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS IN THEIR DISCRETION MAY REQUIRE THE SERVICES TO BE UPGRADED TO CITY STANDARDS.

**11-10-6. CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION AND BY-LAWS.** TWO (2) COPIES OF ALL CONDOMINIUM DOCUMENTS, INCLUDING THE DECLARATION OF CONDOMINIUM AND BY-LAWS SHALL BE PROVIDED FOR REVIEW AND APPROVAL AS TO FORM AND CONTENT BY THE CITY ATTORNEY AND THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR. THE APPROVED CONDOMINIUM DOCUMENTS SHALL BE CONSIDERED PART OF THE OFFICIAL APPROVAL AND SHALL NOT BE ALTERED TO BE INCONSISTENT WITH THE RECORDED PLAT, WITHOUT FURTHER REVIEW AND APPROVAL BY THE CITY OF A REPLAT OR CORRECTED PLAT SUBDIVISION APPLICATION.

**Section 8:** Severability. If any part, section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is for any reason held to be invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the validity of the remaining sections of this ordinance. The City Council hereby declares that it would have passed this ordinance, including each part, section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase hereof, irrespective of the fact that one or more parts, sections, subsections, sentences, clauses or phrases may be declared invalid.

**Section 9:** Repealer. All ordinances or resolutions, or parts thereof, in conflict with this ordinance are hereby repealed, provided that this repealer shall not repeal the repealer clauses of such ordinance nor revive any ordinance thereby.

INTRODUCED AS A BILL at a regularly scheduled meeting of the City Council of the City of Littleton on the 18<sup>th</sup> day of December, 2018, passed on first reading by a vote of 7 FOR and 0 AGAINST; and ordered published by posting at Littleton Center, Bemis Library, the Municipal Courthouse and on the City of Littleton Website.

PUBLIC HEARING on the Ordinance to take place on the 15<sup>th</sup> day of January, 2019, in the Council Chamber, Littleton Center, 2255 West Berry Avenue, Littleton, Colorado, at the hour of 6:30 p.m., or as soon thereafter as it may be heard.

PASSED on second and final reading, following public hearing, by a vote of FOR and \_\_\_\_\_ AGAINST on the 15<sup>th</sup> day of January, 2019 and ordered published by posting at Littleton Center, Bemis Library, the Municipal Courthouse and on the City of Littleton Website.

ATTEST:

37 \_\_\_\_\_  
38 Wendy Heffner  
39 CITY CLERK  
40  
41 \_\_\_\_\_  
42 Lena McClelland  
43 ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNEY  
44  
45

\_\_\_\_\_  
Debbie Brinkman  
MAYOR